
1 
 

 

Planning Commission Staff: 
Craig Baker, Community Development Director 
Susan Hartman, Assistant Planner 
 

Planning Commission Members: 
Ray Groom, Chair 
Anita Towslee, Vice Chair 
James Clarkson, Commissioner 
Stephanie Neumann, Commissioner 
Martin Nichols, Commissioner 

 
 

PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 
6:00 PM – March 21, 2017 

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need a special accommodation to participate, 
please contact Community Development Director Baker, at 872-6291 ext. 111 at least 48 hours in advance of 
the meeting. Hearing assistance devices for the hearing impaired are available from the Presiding Clerk. 
Members of the public may address the Planning Commission on any agenda item, including closed session. 
If you wish to address the Planning Commission on any matter on the Agenda, it is requested that you 
complete a "Request to Address Council/Commission" card and give it to the Presiding Clerk prior to the 
beginning of the Council Meeting. All writings or documents which are related to any item on an open 
session agenda and which are distributed to a majority of the Planning Commission within 72 hours of a 
Regular Meeting will be available for public inspection at the Town Hall in the Town Clerk or Community 
Development Services Department located at 5555 Skyway, at the time the subject writing or document is 
distributed to a majority of the subject body.  Regular business hours are Monday through Thursday from 
8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. 
 

CALL TO ORDER 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE TO THE FLAG OF THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 

ROLL CALL 

1.      APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1a. Approve Regular Meeting Minutes of February 21, 2017 

2.      COMMUNICATION 

 2a. Recent Council Actions 
 2b. Staff Comments 

1



2 
 

3.      PUBLIC COMMUNICATION 

Comments are limited to a maximum of five minutes duration.  If more time is needed, please request staff to 
place the subject on an agenda for a future Commission meeting. 
 

* * * PUBLIC HEARING PROCEDURE * * * 
 A.    Staff comments                                                    C.    Close hearing to the public 
 B.    Open the hearing to the public                             D.    Commission discussion 
         1.Project applicant                                                   E.     Motion 
         2.Parties for the project                                            F.    Vote 
         3.Parties against the project 
         4.Rebuttals 
 
NOTE:  Pursuant to Planning Commission Resolution No. 96-001, any person may speak before the 
Commission regarding the matter under consideration for a maximum of five minutes unless granted 
additional time by the Chair. "In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need a special 
accommodation to participate, please contact the Community Development Dept., at 872-6291 at least 48 
hours in advance of the meeting." 
 

4.      CONTINUED PUBLIC HEARING - None 

5.      PUBLIC HEARING 

5a. Item determined to be exempt from environmental review: 

HOMETECH CHARTER CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT (PL17-00028) 
APPLICATION: Request for Town approval of a Conditional Use Permit 
application to establish an educational facility (Home Tech Charter 
School) for up to 150 students within an existing +/-9,565 square foot 
office space adjoining the Boys & Girls Club upon a +/-0.66 acre property 
located at 6249 Skyway in Paradise. (AP No. 052-130-043) 

6.      OTHER BUSINESS - None. 

7.      COMMITTEE ACTIVITIES 

8.      COMMISSION MEMBERS 

8a. Identification of future agenda items (All Commissioners/Staff) 

9.      ADJOURNMENT 

 

 

  

2



 
 

P  L  A  N  N  I  N  G    C  O  M  M  I  S  S  I  O  N    M  I  N  U  T  E  S 
 

February 21, 2017 

6:00 PM 

 

CALL TO ORDER  by Chair Groom at 6:00 p.m. who led the Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United 

States of America. 

COMMISSIONERS PRESENT:  James Clarkson, Stephanie Neumann, Martin Nichols, Anita Towslee and 

Ray Groom Chair.  

 

1.      APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

1a. MOTION by Nichols, seconded by Towslee, approved the Regular Meeting Minutes of 

December 20, 2016.  Roll call vote was unanimous.  

2.      COMMUNICATION 

 2a. Recent Council Actions  - None. 

2b. Staff Comments – None. 

 

3.      PUBLIC COMMUNICATION – None. 

4.      CONTINUED PUBLIC HEARING - None. 

5.      PUBLIC HEARING - None. 

6.      OTHER BUSINESS 

6a. Consideration of a request to approve a time extension assigned to the conditionally approved 

Risley Tentative Parcel Map (PM-06-16) and Tree Felling Permit (PL10-00024) located at 5893 

Kibler Road, APN 053-180-162. 

 Mr. Risley spoke in support of the extension, requested that the Planning Commission approve 

the request and estimated that it would take about two years to complete the project.  

MOTION BY NICHOLS, seconded by Clarkson, approved, on behalf of the Town of 

Paradise, the granting of a six year time extension for assignment to the conditionally approved 

Risley Tentative Parcel Map (PM-06-16) located at 5893 Kibler Rd, APN 053-180-162, thereby 

creating a new tentative parcel map expiration date of February 16, 2023. Roll call vote was 

unanimous. 3



PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 

Page 2 

  

 

6b. Consideration of a request to approve a time extension assigned to the conditionally approved 

Sonntag Vesting Tentative Map (SD-5-2) Vacant land at the end of Merrill Road, APN 050-260-

014 & 015. 

 Mr. Sonntag spoke in support of the extension, requested that the Planning Commission approve 

the request and estimated that it would take the full six years to complete the project.  

MOTION BY NEUMANN, seconded by Towslee, approved, on behalf of the Town of 

Paradise, the granting of a six year time extension for assignment to the conditionally approved 

Sonntag Vesting Tentative Map (SD-05-2) Vacant land -  Merrill Road, APNs 050-260-014 & 

015, thereby creating a new tentative map expiration date of January 14, 2023.   Roll call vote 

was unanimous.  

7.      COMMITTEE ACTIVITIES – None. 

8.      COMMISSION MEMBERS 

8a. Identification of future agenda items (All Commissioners/Staff) 

Community Development Director Baker discussed the progress on the Safeway project, 

Carousel Motel and informed the Commissioners that a six-lot tentative subdivision map on the 

west end of Buschmann Rd would be coming to them for approval in the near future.  

 

9.      ADJOURNMENT 

 Chair Groom adjourned the meeting at 6:31 p.m. 

Date Approved: 

 

By: _________________________________ 

 Ray Groom, Chair 

 

Attest: 

 

_________________________________ 

 Dina Volenski, CMC, Town Clerk 

 

 

 
 

4



 
 TOWN OF PARADISE PLANNING COMMISSION 
 PLANNING STAFF REPORT 
 MEETING DATE: March 21, 2017 
 
FROM:        Susan Hartman, Assistant Planner AGENDA NO. 5(a)  
SUBJECT:   HomeTech Charter Conditional Use Permit Application (PL17-00028) 
DATE:        March 13, 2017 AP 052-130-043 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION: 
 

Applicant:  HomeTech Charter School (Mike Ervin) 
    7126 Skyway 
    Paradise, CA  95969 
 

Location:  6249 Skyway 
 

Requested Action: Request for Town approval of a Conditional Use Permit application to establish 
an educational facility (HomeTech Charter School) for up to 150 students within 
an existing +/-9,565 square foot office space adjoining the Boys & Girls Club 
upon a +/-0.66 acre property located at 6249 Skyway in Paradise (AP No. 052-
130-043).  

 
Purpose:  To provide alternative educational opportunities for K-12 students.   
 
Present Zoning:      Central Business (CB)  
 
General Plan  
Designation:     Central Commercial (CC) 

   
Existing Land Use: Office space recently vacated by Youth for Change (Family Resource Center).  
 
Surrounding  
Land Use:  North:  Commercial Retail 
   East:  Inez Way 

South:  Park and ride facilities 
West:  Skyway 
 

Parcel size:  +/-0.66 acres 
 

Environmental  
  Determination:        Categorical Exemption – CEQA Guidelines Section 15301 (Class 1) 

 
Other:   An appeal of a Planning Commission’s decision can be made within 7 (seven) 

days of the decision date. 
 
NOTE: THE APPLICANT OR A REPRESENTATIVE SHOULD BE IN ATTENDANCE OR THE PLANNING 

COMMISSION MAY NOT TAKE ACTION ON THIS APPLICATION. 
5



HomeTech Charter                  March 13, 2017 
PL17-00028 
pg. 2 
 
SPECIAL INFORMATION: 
 
The project applicant, HomeTech Charter School, is requesting Town of Paradise conditional use 
permit application approval for the establishment of an educational facility (HomeTech Charter 
School) to provide K-12 education for up to 150 students within an existing +/-9,565 square 
foot office space adjoining the Boys & Girls Club upon a +/-0.66 acre property located at 6249 
Skyway in Paradise. The property is owned by the Boys & Girls Club.  The building space was, 
until recently, occupied by Youth for Change’s Family Resource Center. The use of the space as 
an educational facility, as defined by the Paradise Municipal Code (PMC), is potentially 
permitted in the Central Business (CB) zone with the issuance of a conditional use permit.  
 
The project site is currently improved with the existing Boys & Girls Club, the vacant office 
space proposed to be occupied by HomeTech Charter School, a paved parking facility and an 
on-site wastewater disposal system. Access to the site is provided through the adjoining Town 
of Paradise Park & Ride Facility to the south, via a ‘right to cross’ easement recorded in 1999 
between the Town of Paradise and Boys & Girls Club, which has a driveway encroachment 
connecting to Skyway.  
 
The proposed services would include the operation of a public charter school operating from 
8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. Monday through Friday with typical school holidays and closures. 
Staffing will consist of a combination of full and part time employees totaling 7.2 FTE. Students 
of HomeTech Charter School are primarily home-schooled students who come to the campus 
for core, enrichment, and elective classes a few times a week with each session typically lasting 
2-3 hours. Though total student enrollment is proposed to be up to 150 students, on average, 
only 50-65 students are on campus at any one time.  
 
The existing vacant office space, proposed to be occupied by HomeTech Charter School, will 
require minor interior alterations for the creation of the five proposed classrooms. All 
construction will be interior with no proposed expansion to the footprint of the existing 
building. The front and rear entrances of the building are already equipped with ADA accessible 
ramps.  
 
ANALYSIS: 
 
The proposed educational facility land use is enumerated as a potentially permitted land use 
within the CB zoning district subject to town approval of a conditional use permit. Parking 
demand for the proposed use is expected to be minimal, mainly just for staff as students will be 
dropped off, and can easily be accommodated within the existing on-site parking facility, 
particularly since the Boys & Girls Club activities occur later in the day (3:00 p.m. to 6:00 p.m.) 
with only an hour of overlap between the two programs.  

6



HomeTech Charter                  March 13, 2017 
PL17-00028 
pg. 3 
 
Wastewater division staff have granted land use review approval, indicating that the estimated 
wastewater flows generated by the proposed educational facility can be accommodated by the 
existing on-site wastewater disposal system.  
 
The project has received favorable responses from other commenting agencies and, If 
conditioned prudently, appears to be a reasonable location for the establishment of the 
proposed educational facility, partly due to the proximity of other supportive services and 
facilities (bus stop, Boys & Girls Club Teen Center, etc.). In addition, the design and function of 
the project can be conditioned to be in compliance with all applicable zoning regulations and 
can be found to be consistent with applicable Paradise General Plan policies. 
 
ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW: 
 
As a project involving only interior changes of an existing structure, the project belongs to a 
class of projects that can be determined to be categorically exempt from the requirements of 
the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), pursuant to Section 15301 (Class 1) of the 
CEQA Guidelines. 
 
ANALYSIS CONCLUSION: 
 
After reviewing the existing environmental setting and circumstances associated with this 
application request, it is staff’s position that the requested conditional use permit application is 
reasonable and appropriate. Staff has developed several recommended conditions of project 
approval to insure project compatibility with adjacent and nearby land uses. Therefore, staff 
endorses Planning Commission approval of the HomeTech Charter School conditional use 
permit application, based upon and subject to the following recommended findings and 
conditions of project approval:   
 
FINDINGS REQUIRED FOR APPROVAL: 
 
1.  Certify the Planning Director’s determination that the proposed project is categorically 

exempt from the requirements of the California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA), 
pursuant to Section 15301 (Class 1) of the State CEQA Guidelines. 

 
2. Find that the project, as conditioned, is consistent with the goals and policies of the 

Paradise General Plan because the project will result in the establishment of a land use 
on property that is conditionally zoned for such use and will provide a beneficial 
educational service within an existing structure suitable for such use. 

 
3. Find that the project, as conditioned, is in compliance with all applicable regulations of 

7



HomeTech Charter                  March 13, 2017 
PL17-00028 
pg. 4 

the Central Business zoning district. 
 
4.  Find that adequate infrastructure is currently in place to serve the proposed project. 
 
5.  Find that the project, as conditioned, will not detrimentally affect existing plant and animal 

life in the project vicinity for the following reasons: 
 
  a. The project is located within an area that has been altered from its natural state by 

long-established commercial and residential land uses and public infrastructure; 
 
  b. No known outstanding wildlife habitat exists in the immediate project vicinity; and 
 
  c. No known rare or endangered plants are known to exist in the immediate project 

vicinity. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
After closure of the scheduled public hearing, adopt the findings provided by staff and 
approve the HomeTech Charter School conditional use permit application (PL17-00028) 
authorizing the establishment of an educational facility (HomeTech Charter School) to provide 
educational services to approximately 150 or fewer enrolled students. Services would be 
provided within an existing +/-9,565 square foot office space on property located at 6249 
Skyway in Paradise, subject to the following conditions: 
 

GENERAL CONDITIONS OF CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT APPROVAL 
 
1. If any land use for which a conditional use permit has been granted and issued is not 

established within three years of the conditional use permit’s effective date, the 
conditional use permit may become subject to revocation by the Town of Paradise. 

 
2. Secure Town of Paradise design review approval for any new business or identification 

signs prior to the establishment of such signs.   
 
3. Secure annual fire prevention inspections from the Town Fire Marshal in accordance 

with the California Code of Regulations Title 19 Public Safety.  
 
4. Minor changes to the nature or function of project-related actives may be approved 

administratively by the Town Planning Director upon submittal of a written request for 
such changes, if the requested changes are consistent with the overall intent of the 
project and its approval action.  Any requested changes deemed by the Planning 
Director to be major or significant shall require a formal conditional use permit 

8



HomeTech Charter                  March 13, 2017 
PL17-00028 
pg. 5 

modification review and the payment of the appropriate processing fees. No changes 
affecting wastewater flow shall be considered without prior consultation with the 
Onsite Division. 

 
CONDITIONS TO BE MET PRIOR TO OCCUPANCY AS AN EDUCATIONAL FACILITY 

 

FIRE PROTECTION 
 

5. Establish and maintain compliance with all requirements of the Town Building 
Official/Fire Marshal in accordance with the written comments dated March 10, 2017 
for the HomeTech Charter conditional use permit application (copy on file with the 
Town Development Services Department). 

 
SITE DEVELOPMENT 
 
6. Meet the requirements of the Town Building Official/Fire Marshal regarding submittal of 

any plans, building permit applications, and all applicable Town adopted building code 
requirements. 
 

7. Meet the requirements of Paradise Irrigation District with the installation of a backflow 
prevention assembly in accordance with the written comments dated March 3, 2017.  

 
CONDITIONS OF LAND USE OPERATION 

 
8. Hours and days of operation for the educational facility shall be limited to from 8:00 

a.m. to 4:00 p.m., Monday through Friday. 
 
9. Maintain the project site in an orderly manner free of debris and litter.  
 
10. Services provided by HomeTech Charter School on the project site shall be limited to K-

12 students. 
 
11. All activities associated with operation of the educational facility shall be conducted in 

compliance with the Town of Paradise Noise Ordinance regulations. 
 
 
  

9



HomeTech Charter                  March 13, 2017 
PL17-00028 
pg. 6 

 
LIST OF ATTACHMENTS FOR HOMETECH CHARTER USE PERMIT APPLICATION (PL17-00028) 

 
1.  Project site vicinity map 
 
2.  Notice sent to surrounding property owners and the Paradise Post for the March 21, 

2017 public hearing 
 
3.  Mailing list of property owners and agencies notified of the March 21, 2017 public 

hearing 
 
4.  Comments received from Building Official/Fire Marshal Tony Lindsey dated March 10, 

2017 
 
5.  Comments received from Assistant Onsite Official Bob Larson dated December 5, 2016 
 
6.  Comments received from Paradise Irrigation District representative Neil Essila dated 

March 3, 2017  
 
7.  Comments received from Town Engineer Marc Mattox on March 10, 2017 
 
8.  Comments received from Paradise Police Lieutenant Eric Reinbold on February 28, 2017 
 
9.  Completed conditional use permit application submitted by HomeTech Charter School 

on February 23, 2017 
 
10.  Project description submitted by the project engineer, NorthStar Engineering 
 
11. Site plan for the HomeTech Charter School project (24” X 36”) 
 
12. CEQA Notice of Exemption document for the HomeTech Charter School project 
 
 

10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23


	Top
	1a. 03/21/17 PC 1A MINUTES 
	Planning Commission 02_21_2017 06_00PM Minutes.docx

	5a. 03/21/17 PC 5A HOMETECH CHARTER USE PERMIT
	5a PL17-00028 HomeTech CUP.docx
	5a Hometech attachments.pdf

	Bottom

